
The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

AGENDA 

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING 

REGULAR MEETING 
September 11, 2019 

9:00 a.m. 

Retirement Board Conference Room 
The Willows Office Park 

1355 Willow Way, Suite 221 
Concord, California 

THE RETIREMENT BOARD MAY DISCUSS AND TAKE ACTION ON THE FOLLOWING: 

1. Pledge of Allegiance.

2. Accept comments from the public.

3. Approve minutes from the August 14, 2019 meeting.

4. Routine items for September 11, 2019.

a. Approve certifications of membership.
b. Approve service and disability allowances.
c. Accept disability applications and authorize subpoenas as required.
d. Approve death benefits.
e. Accept asset allocation report.
f. Accept liquidity report.

CLOSED SESSION 

5. The Board will go into closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) to
confer with legal counsel regarding pending litigation:

a. CCCERA v. Salgado, Contra Costa County Superior Court, Case No. MSC19-00580

6. The Board will continue in closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54957 to consider
recommendations from the medical advisor and/or staff regarding the following disability
retirement applications:

Member Type Sought Recommendation 
a. Felipe Barreto Service Connected Service Connected 
b. Steven Grubka Service Connected Service Connected 
c. Peter Marshall Service Connected Service Connected 
d. Kevin Prescott Service Connected Service Connected 

OPEN SESSION 

7. Presentation of Semi-Annual Disability Retirement Report.



The Retirement Board will provide reasonable accommodations for 
persons with disabilities planning to attend Board meetings who 
contact the Retirement Office at least 24 hours before a meeting. 

8. Review of the Procurement of Products and Services Policy.

9. Consider and take possible action on SACRS voting proxy form.

10. Report from Audit Committee Chair on August 28, 2019 Audit Committee meeting.

11. Consider authorizing the attendance of Board:
a. 2019 CRCEA Fall Conference, October 28-30, 2019, Rohnert Park, CA.
b. SACRS Fall Conference, November 12-15, 2019, Monterey, CA.

12. Miscellaneous
a. Staff Report
b. Outside Professionals’ Report
c. Trustees’ comments



MINUTES 

RETIREMENT BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

REGULAR MEETING 
August 14, 2019 

9:00 a.m. 

Retirement Board Conference Room 
The Willows Office Park 

1355 Willow Way, Suite 221 
Concord, California 

Present: Candace Andersen, Donald Finley, Scott Gordon, Jerry Holcombe, Louie Kroll, Jay 
Kwon, David MacDonald, John Phillips, Mike Sloan, Todd Smithey and Russell Watts 

Absent: William Pigeon 

Staff: Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer; Christina Dunn, Deputy Chief Executive Officer; 
Timothy Price, Chief Investment Officer; Karen Levy, General Counsel; Wrally 
Dutkiewicz, Compliance Officer; Anne Sommers, Administrative/HR Manager; Henry 
Gudino, Accounting Manager; and Tim Hoppe, Retirement Services Manager 

Outside Professional Support: Representing: 
None 

Board member Andersen attended remotely from 1516 Kamole Street, Honolulu, Hawaii 96821 

1. Pledge of Allegiance

The Board, staff and audience joined in the Pledge of Allegiance.

2. Recognition of Gail Strohl for 5 years of service and Gary Wayne for 30 years of service

Smithey recognized and congratulated Gail Strohl for her 5 years of service and Gary Wayne for his
30 years of service.

3. Accept comments from the public

No member of the public offered comment.

4. Approval of minutes

It was M/S/C to approve the minutes of the July 10, 2019 Board meeting. (Yes: Andersen, Finley,
Gordon, Holcombe, Kroll, MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and Watts).

5. Routine Items

It was M/S/C to approve the routine items of the August 14, 2019 meeting. (Yes:  Andersen, Finley,
Gordon, Holcombe, Kroll, MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and Watts)

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date09/11/19Agenda Item#3



Page 2 
August 14, 2019 

CLOSED SESSION 

The Board moved into closed session pursuant to Govt. Code Section 54956.9(d)(1) and 54957. 

The Board moved into open session. 

6. There was no reportable action related to Alex-Moore v. Board of Retirement, Contra Costa County
Superior Court, Case No. N19-1331.

7. It was M/S/C to accept the Medical Advisor’s recommendation and grant the following disability
benefits:

a. Jerry Ennis – Service Connected  (Yes: Andersen, Finley, Gordon, Holcombe, Kroll, MacDonald,
Phillips, Smithey and Watts)

b. Jacki Fuhrman – Service Connected (Yes: Andersen, Finley, Gordon, Holcombe, Kroll,
MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and Watts)

c. Roger Harless – Service Connected (Yes: Andersen, Finley, Gordon, Holcombe, Kroll,
MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and Watts)

d. Hugh Marquez – Service Connected (Yes: Andersen, Finley, Gordon, Holcombe, Kroll,
MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and Watts)

e. Jesus Puente – Service Connected (Yes: Andersen, Finley, Gordon, Holcombe, Kroll, MacDonald,
Phillips, Smithey and Watts)

f. Adam Rich – Service Connected (Yes: Andersen, Finley, Gordon, Holcombe, Kroll, MacDonald,
Phillips, Smithey and Watts)

g. Robbie Robinson – Service Connected (Yes: Andersen, Finley, Gordon, Holcombe, Kroll,
MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and Watts)

8. Consider and take possible action to authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute an
agreement with Avenu Insights and Analytics for digitization services

After a discussion, it was M/S/C to authorize the Chief Executive Officer to execute an agreement
with Avenu Insights and Analytics for digitization services. (Yes: Andersen, Finley, Gordon,
Holcombe, Kroll, MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and Watts)

9. Presentation of year to date 2019 CCCERA budget vs. actual expenses report

Gudino presented the year to date 2019 CCCERA budget vs. actual expenses mid-year report. He 
reported the administrative expenses have a remaining budget of 53% at mid-year and we are at 
0.11% of the actuarial accrued liability which is well under the limit of 0.21%. 

10. Consider authorizing the attendance of Board:

a. There was no action taken on this item - 2019 Public Safety Conference, NCPERS, October
27-30, 2019, New Orleans, LA.

b. It was M/S/C to authorize the attendance of 1 Board member at the 2019 Annual Investment
Summit, Torchlight Investors, November 6-7, 2019, New York, NY.  (Yes:  Andersen, Finley,
Gordon, Holcombe, Kroll, MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and Watts)

11. Miscellaneous

(a) Staff Report –



Page 3 
August 14, 2019 

Strohl reported CCCERA is still on track for the move on September 16th and noted the second 
Board meeting of September will be held at the new location. 

(b) Outside Professionals’ Report -   

None 

(c) Trustees’ comments – 

MacDonald stated he would like to have a presenter on mental health at a future meeting. Strohl 
reported that a presenter has been located and the presentation will be scheduled for the end of 
September or early October. 

Gordon asked that the meeting be adjourned in memory of Candace Andersen’s mother, Dianne 
Fife Kay. 

It was M/S/C to adjourn the meeting in memory of Dianne Fife Kay.  (Yes: Andersen, Finley, Gordon, 
Holcombe, Kroll, MacDonald, Phillips, Smithey and Watts) 

Todd Smithey, Chairman David MacDonald, Secretary 



sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date09/11/19Agenda Item#4





sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date09/11/19Agenda Item#4









Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association
Asset Allocation as of July 31, 2019

Market Percentage Phase 3 Target Phase 3 Long Term Long Term
Liquidity Value of Total Fund Percentage Over/(Under) Target Over/(Under)

Insight 1,072,817,411 11.9% 12.0% -0.1%
Sit 538,837,001 6.0% 6.0% -0.0%
Dimensional Fund Advisors 527,265,321 5.8% 6.0% -0.2%

Total Liquidity 2,138,919,732           23.6% 24.0% -0.4% 24.0% -0.4%

Growth
Domestic Equity
Boston Partners 231,592,007 2.6% 2.5% 0.1%
Jackson Square 234,004,694 2.6% 2.5% 0.1%
BlackRock Index Fund 187,892,782 2.1% 2.0% 0.1%
Emerald Advisors 156,373,137 1.7% 1.5% 0.2%
Ceredex 157,447,174 1.7% 1.5% 0.2%
Total Domestic Equity 967,309,793 10.7% 10.0% 0.7% 5.0% 5.7%

Global & International Equity
Pyrford (BMO) 447,013,835 4.9% 5.0% -0.1%
William Blair 451,724,415 5.0% 5.0% -0.0%
First Eagle 369,003,841 4.1% 4.0% 0.1%
Artisan Global Opportunities 375,384,806 4.1% 4.0% 0.1%
PIMCO/RAE Emerging Markets 342,311,326 3.8% 4.0% -0.2%
TT Emerging Markets 332,910,620 3.7% 4.0% -0.3%
Total Global & International Equity 2,318,348,844 25.6% 26.0% -0.4% 24.0% 1.6%

Private Equity 994,759,762 11.0% 11.0% -0.0% 11.0% -0.0%
Private Credit 343,274,805 3.8% 5.0% -1.2% 12.0% -8.2%
Real Estate - Value Add 177,526,653 2.0% 4.0% -2.0% 4.0% -2.0%
Real Estate - Opportunistic & Distressed 509,891,493 5.6% 4.0% 1.6% 4.0% 1.6%
Real Estate - REIT (Adelante) 76,253,840 0.8% 1.0% -0.2% 1.0% -0.2%
High Yield (Allianz) 240,032,121 2.7% 2.0% 0.7% 0.0% 2.7%
Risk Parity 5.0% -0.1% 5.0% -0.1%
AQR GRP EL 225,993,731 2.5%
PanAgora 216,653,236 2.4%
Total Other Growth Assets 2,784,385,641 30.8% 32.0% -1.2% 37.0% -6.2%

Total Growth Assets 6,070,044,278 67.1% 68.0% -0.9% 66.0% 1.1%

Risk Diversifying 
AFL-CIO 333,354,520 3.7% 3.5% 0.2% 3.0% 0.7%
Parametric Defensive Equity 200,114,901 2.2% 2.5% -0.3% 3.5% -1.3%
Wellington Real Total Return 186,837,610 2.1% 2.0% 0.1% 3.5% -1.4%

Total Risk Diversifying 720,307,031 8.0% 8.0% -0.0% 10.0% -2.0%

Cash and Overlay
Overlay (Parametric) 13,391,665 0.1% 0.1%
Cash 108,715,756 1.2% 1.2%

Total Cash and Overlay 122,107,421 1.3% 0.0% 1.3% 0.0% 1.3%

Total Fund 9,051,378,462.72      100% 100% 0% 100% 0%

*Phase 3 targets and ranges reflect Phase 3 asset allocation targets accepted by the Board on June 27, 2018 (BOR Resolution 2018-2)

0% - 10%

Range
16% - 28%

Range
60% - 80%

Range

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date09/11/19Agenda Item#4



Pr
iv

at
e  

M
ar

ke
t I

nv
es

tm
en

ts
As

 o
f J

ul
y 

31
, 2

01
9

RE
AL

 E
ST

AT
E 

- V
al

ue
 A

dd
In

ce
pt

io
n

Ta
rg

et
# 

of
Di

sc
re

tio
n

N
ew

 T
ar

ge
t

Fu
nd

in
g

M
ar

ke
t

%
 o

f
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
Da

te
Te

rm
in

at
io

n
Ex

te
ns

io
n

by
 G

P/
LP

Te
rm

in
at

io
n

Co
m

m
itm

en
t

Va
lu

e
To

ta
l A

ss
et

Co
m

m
itm

en
t

In
ve

sc
o 

IR
EF

 II
05

/3
0/

07
12

/3
1/

15
in

 fu
ll 

liq
.

85
,0

00
,0

00
41

9,
67

7
0.

00
%

In
ve

sc
o 

IR
EF

 II
I

08
/0

1/
13

08
/0

1/
20

35
,0

00
,0

00
8,

70
5,

83
2

0.
10

%
In

ve
sc

o 
IR

EF
 IV

12
/0

1/
14

12
/0

1/
21

35
,0

00
,0

00
22

,2
46

,5
09

0.
25

%
5,

19
1,

26
1 

In
ve

sc
o 

IR
EF

 V
09

/1
1/

18
09

/1
1/

25
75

,0
00

,0
00

17
,5

13
,0

66
0.

19
%

56
,9

81
,2

66
 

Lo
ng

 W
ha

rf
 F

RE
G 

IV
08

/1
4/

13
09

/3
0/

21
25

,0
00

,0
00

7,
32

5,
69

0
0.

08
%

Lo
ng

 W
ha

rf
 F

RE
G 

V
10

/3
1/

16
09

/3
0/

24
50

,0
00

,0
00

43
,4

89
,7

67
0.

48
%

La
Sa

lle
 In

co
m

e 
&

 G
ro

w
th

 F
un

d 
VI

01
/3

1/
12

01
/3

1/
19

75
,0

00
,0

00
28

,4
55

,2
15

0.
31

%
3,

94
6,

00
0 

La
Sa

lle
 In

co
m

e 
&

 G
ro

w
th

 F
un

d 
VI

I
10

/3
1/

16
09

/3
0/

24
75

,0
00

,0
00

49
,3

70
,8

97
0.

55
%

20
,8

36
,6

46
 

58
0,

00
0,

00
0

17
7,

52
6,

65
3

1.
96

%
86

,9
55

,1
73

 
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 C

om
m

itm
en

ts
86

,9
55

,1
73

 
To

ta
l

26
4,

48
1,

82
6

RE
AL

 E
ST

AT
E 

-O
pp

or
tu

ni
st

ic
 &

 D
is

tr
es

se
d

In
ce

pt
io

n
Ta

rg
et

# 
of

Di
sc

re
tio

n
N

ew
 T

ar
ge

t
Fu

nd
in

g
M

ar
ke

t
%

 o
f

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

Da
te

Te
rm

in
at

io
n

Ex
te

ns
io

n
by

 G
P/

LP
Te

rm
in

at
io

n
Co

m
m

itm
en

t
Va

lu
e

To
ta

l A
ss

et
Co

m
m

itm
en

t
DL

J R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

Ca
pi

ta
l P

ar
tn

er
s,

 L
.P

. I
II

06
/3

0/
05

06
/3

0/
14

in
 fu

ll 
liq

.
75

,0
00

,0
00

21
,3

27
,1

20
0.

24
%

4,
03

1,
33

8
DL

J R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

Ca
pi

ta
l P

ar
tn

er
s,

 L
.P

. I
V

12
/3

1/
07

09
/3

0/
18

10
0,

00
0,

00
0

80
,1

25
,2

79
0.

89
%

2,
89

0,
80

9
DL

J R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

Ca
pi

ta
l P

ar
tn

er
s,

 L
.P

. V
07

/3
1/

13
12

/3
1/

22
75

,0
00

,0
00

62
,3

04
,9

49
0.

69
%

15
,7

64
,0

44
DL

J R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

Ca
pi

ta
l P

ar
tn

er
s,

 L
.P

. V
I

02
/2

8/
19

01
/3

1/
29

50
,0

00
,0

00
29

,2
30

,6
47

0.
32

%
20

,3
86

,9
99

O
ak

tr
ee

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

O
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s F
un

d 
V

02
/0

1/
11

02
/0

1/
21

50
,0

00
,0

00
4,

71
3,

27
1

0.
05

%
25

,7
50

,0
00

 
O

ak
tr

ee
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e 
O

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s F

un
d 

VI
09

/3
0/

13
09

/3
0/

20
80

,0
00

,0
00

32
,6

72
,1

67
0.

36
%

18
,4

00
,0

00
 

O
ak

tr
ee

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

O
pp

or
tu

ni
tie

s F
un

d 
VI

I
02

/2
8/

15
02

/2
8/

23
65

,0
00

,0
00

62
,1

23
,6

91
0.

69
%

13
,5

20
,0

00
 

Si
gu

le
r G

uf
f D

ist
re

ss
ed

 R
ea

l E
st

at
e 

O
pp

. F
un

d
07

/3
0/

11
07

/3
0/

22
75

,0
00

,0
00

31
,8

13
,1

48
0.

35
%

5,
62

5,
00

0 
Si

gu
le

r G
uf

f D
ist

re
ss

ed
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e 
O

pp
. F

un
d 

II
08

/3
1/

13
08

/3
1/

25
70

,0
00

,0
00

49
,8

23
,9

33
0.

55
%

9,
59

0,
00

0 
Si

gu
le

r G
uf

f D
ist

re
ss

ed
 R

ea
l E

st
at

e 
O

pp
. I

I C
o-

In
v

01
/3

1/
16

10
/3

1/
25

25
,0

00
,0

00
25

,3
27

,4
92

0.
28

%
4,

46
2,

13
8 

Pa
ul

so
n 

Re
al

 E
st

at
e 

Fu
nd

 II
11

/1
0/

13
11

/1
0/

20
20

,0
00

,0
00

25
,5

48
,0

28
0.

28
%

65
4,

37
7 

An
ge

lo
 G

or
do

n 
Re

al
ty

 F
un

d 
VI

II
12

/3
1/

11
12

/3
1/

18
80

,0
00

,0
00

23
,4

62
,0

72
0.

26
%

4,
59

8,
14

5 
An

ge
lo

 G
or

do
n 

Re
al

ty
 F

un
d 

IX
10

/1
0/

14
10

/1
0/

22
65

,0
00

,0
00

61
,4

19
,6

96
0.

68
%

9,
42

5,
00

0 
83

0,
00

0,
00

0
50

9,
89

1,
49

3
5.

63
%

13
5,

09
7,

85
0 

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

 C
om

m
itm

en
ts

13
5,

09
7,

85
0 

To
ta

l
64

4,
98

9,
34

3

PR
IV

AT
E 

CR
ED

IT
In

ce
pt

io
n

Ta
rg

et
# 

of
Di

sc
re

tio
n

N
ew

 T
ar

ge
t

Fu
nd

in
g

M
ar

ke
t

%
 o

f
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
Da

te
Te

rm
in

at
io

n
Ex

te
ns

io
n

by
 G

P/
LP

Te
rm

in
at

io
n

Co
m

m
itm

en
t

Va
lu

e
To

ta
l A

ss
et

Co
m

m
itm

en
t

To
rc

hl
ig

ht
 D

eb
t O

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 F

un
d 

III
09

/3
0/

08
06

/3
0/

16
2n

d 
1 

YR
LP

06
/3

0/
18

75
,0

00
,0

00
0

0.
00

%
0

To
rc

hl
ig

ht
 D

eb
t O

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 F

un
d 

IV
08

/0
1/

12
08

/3
0/

20
60

,0
00

,0
00

20
,9

65
,0

22
0.

23
%

0
To

rc
hl

ig
ht

 D
eb

t O
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 F
un

d 
V

12
/3

1/
14

09
/1

7/
22

75
,0

00
,0

00
58

,4
40

,4
79

0.
65

%
22

,5
00

,0
00

An
ge

lo
 G

or
do

n 
En

er
gy

 C
re

di
t O

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s

09
/1

0/
15

09
/1

0/
20

16
,5

00
,0

00
4,

33
7,

75
2

0.
05

%
2,

31
9,

78
3

CC
CE

RA
 S

te
pS

to
ne

12
/0

1/
17

11
/3

0/
27

65
0,

00
0,

00
0

25
9,

53
1,

55
2

2.
87

%
40

4,
24

8,
80

4 
1,

00
4,

50
0,

00
0

34
3,

27
4,

80
5

3.
79

%
42

9,
06

8,
58

7
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 C

om
m

itm
en

ts
42

9,
06

8,
58

7
To

ta
l

77
2,

34
3,

39
2



Pr
iv

at
e  

M
ar

ke
t I

nv
es

tm
en

ts
As

 o
f J

ul
y 

31
, 2

01
9

PR
IV

AT
E 

EQ
U

IT
Y

In
ce

pt
io

n
Ta

rg
et

# 
of

Di
sc

re
tio

n
N

ew
 T

ar
ge

t
Fu

nd
in

g
M

ar
ke

t
%

 o
f

O
ut

st
an

di
ng

Da
te

Te
rm

in
at

io
n

Ex
te

ns
io

n
by

 G
P/

LP
Te

rm
in

at
io

n
Co

m
m

itm
en

t
Va

lu
e

To
ta

l A
ss

et
Co

m
m

itm
en

t
Ad

am
s S

tr
ee

t P
ar

tn
er

s
12

/2
2/

95
12

/2
2/

25
26

9,
56

5,
61

4
14

9,
85

4,
71

3
1.

66
%

27
,0

25
,0

80
 

Ad
am

s S
tr

ee
t S

ec
on

da
ry

 II
12

/3
1/

08
12

/3
1/

20
30

,0
00

,0
00

8,
07

7,
62

1
0.

09
%

1,
63

5,
00

0 
Ad

am
s S

tr
ee

t S
ec

on
da

ry
 V

10
/3

1/
12

10
/3

1/
22

40
,0

00
,0

00
   

   
   

   
 

21
,6

60
,4

33
0.

24
%

9,
38

8,
10

0 
Ad

am
s S

tr
ee

t V
en

tu
re

 In
no

va
tio

n 
Fu

nd
03

/0
9/

16
03

/0
9/

28
75

,0
00

,0
00

42
,9

85
,0

12
0.

47
%

35
,2

12
,5

00
 

AE
 In

du
st

ria
l P

ar
tn

er
s F

un
d 

II
05

/1
8/

18
05

/1
8/

28
35

,0
00

,0
00

2,
14

0,
80

9
0.

02
%

32
,3

57
,5

33
 

Ba
y 

Ar
ea

 E
qu

ity
 F

un
d

06
/1

4/
04

12
/3

1/
14

2n
d 

2 
YR

LP
12

/3
1/

20
17

10
,0

00
,0

00
2,

41
2,

10
2

0.
03

%
Ba

y 
Ar

ea
 E

qu
ity

 F
un

d 
II

2/
29

/0
9

12
/3

1/
19

10
,0

00
,0

00
11

,2
44

,9
21

0.
12

%
Ca

rp
en

te
r C

om
m

un
ity

 B
an

cF
un

d
10

/3
1/

09
10

/3
1/

19
30

,0
00

,0
00

0.
00

%
EI

F 
U

SP
F 

II
06

/1
5/

05
06

/1
5/

15
3r

d 
1 

YR
LP

06
/1

5/
18

50
,0

00
,0

00
8,

08
9,

51
2

0.
09

%
0

EI
F 

U
SP

F 
III

02
/2

8/
07

02
/2

8/
17

1s
t 1

 Y
R

LP
02

/2
8/

18
65

,0
00

,0
00

18
,5

24
,4

52
0.

20
%

0
EI

F 
U

SP
F 

IV
06

/2
8/

10
06

/2
8/

20
50

,0
00

,0
00

47
,2

25
,0

35
0.

52
%

1,
78

6,
02

9
Ar

es
 E

IF
 V

09
/0

9/
15

11
/1

9/
25

50
,0

00
,0

00
41

,0
99

,6
31

0.
45

%
9,

87
8,

56
8 

Ge
ns

ta
r C

ap
ita

l P
ar

tn
er

s I
X,

 L
.P

.
02

/2
1/

19
50

,0
00

,0
00

0
49

,8
13

,3
47

 
O

ak
tr

ee
 P

riv
at

e 
In

ve
st

m
en

t F
un

d 
20

09
02

/2
8/

10
12

/1
5/

19
40

,0
00

,0
00

6,
64

6,
60

3
0.

07
%

6,
30

8,
96

1
O

ce
an

 A
ve

nu
e 

Fu
nd

 II
05

/0
7/

14
05

/0
7/

24
30

,0
00

,0
00

28
,3

81
,9

40
0.

31
%

3,
90

0,
00

0
   

   
   

   
   

 
O

ce
an

 A
ve

nu
e 

Fu
nd

 II
I

12
/0

9/
15

12
/0

9/
25

50
,0

00
,0

00
48

,9
86

,0
47

0.
54

%
11

,0
00

,0
00

   
   

   
   

  
Pa

la
di

n 
III

08
/1

5/
08

08
/1

5/
18

25
,0

00
,0

00
29

,1
96

,6
29

0.
32

%
52

3,
38

2
Pa

th
w

ay
11

/0
9/

98
05

/3
1/

21
12

5,
00

0,
00

0
16

,2
38

,0
67

0.
18

%
10

,9
25

,3
54

 
N

og
al

es
 In

ve
st

m
en

t
02

/1
5/

04
02

/1
5/

14
so

ld
 la

st
 in

v.
15

,0
00

,0
00

-  
- 

0
Pa

th
w

ay
 2

00
8

12
/2

6/
08

12
/2

6/
23

30
,0

00
,0

00
19

,4
94

,1
71

0.
22

%
3,

36
7,

34
1 

Pa
th

w
ay

 6
05

/2
4/

11
05

/2
4/

26
40

,0
00

,0
00

35
,5

33
,4

44
0.

39
%

4,
27

6,
92

4 
Pa

th
w

ay
 7

02
/0

7/
13

02
/0

7/
23

70
,0

00
,0

00
69

,1
77

,5
75

0.
76

%
8,

76
5,

25
4 

Pa
th

w
ay

 8
11

/2
3/

15
11

/2
3/

25
50

,0
00

,0
00

42
,8

21
,1

44
0.

47
%

16
,3

47
,7

83
 

Si
gu

le
r G

uf
f C

CC
ER

A 
O

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s

06
/0

3/
14

05
/3

1/
25

20
0,

00
0,

00
0

16
3,

69
6,

02
0

1.
81

%
61

,2
24

,7
72

 
Si

gu
le

r G
uf

f S
ec

on
da

ry
 O

pp
or

tu
ni

tie
s

12
/3

1/
16

12
/3

1/
26

50
,0

00
,0

00
17

5,
87

1
0.

00
%

49
,3

56
,0

46
 

Si
ris

 P
ar

tn
er

s I
V

05
/1

8/
18

05
/1

8/
28

35
,0

00
,0

00
10

,0
11

,9
50

0.
11

%
24

,3
27

,0
36

 
TP

G 
He

al
th

ca
re

 P
ar

tn
er

s,
 L

.P
.

06
/2

8/
19

24
,0

00
,0

00
0

24
,0

00
,0

00
 

Tr
id

en
t V

III
, L

.P
.

05
/2

4/
19

40
,0

00
,0

00
0

40
,0

00
,0

00
 

Re
al

 A
ss

et
s

Ae
th

er
 II

I &
 II

I S
ur

pl
us

11
/3

0/
13

11
/3

0/
20

75
,0

00
,0

00
70

,8
59

,8
99

0.
78

%
7,

60
7,

04
2

   
   

   
   

   
 

Ae
th

er
 IV

01
/0

1/
16

01
/0

1/
28

50
,0

00
,0

00
38

,5
35

,9
27

0.
43

%
16

,7
78

,6
71

   
   

   
   

  
Co

m
m

on
fu

nd
 C

ap
ita

l N
at

ur
al

 R
es

ou
rc

es
 IX

06
/3

0/
13

06
/3

0/
20

50
,0

00
,0

00
45

,9
52

,2
45

0.
51

%
6,

67
5,

00
5

   
   

   
   

   
 

W
as

te
w

at
er

 O
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

 F
un

d
12

/3
1/

15
11

/3
0/

22
25

,0
00

,0
00

15
,7

37
,9

89
0.

17
%

6,
83

8,
21

7
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

81
8,

56
5,

61
4

99
4,

75
9,

76
2

10
.9

9%
46

9,
31

7,
94

5
O

ut
st

an
di

ng
 C

om
m

itm
en

ts
46

9,
31

7,
94

5
To

ta
l

1,
46

4,
07

7,
70

7

M
ar

ke
t v

al
ue

 e
qu

al
s t

he
 m

os
t r

ec
en

t r
ep

or
te

d 
ne

t a
ss

et
 v

al
ue

, p
lu

s c
ap

ita
l c

al
ls 

af
te

r n
et

 a
ss

et
 v

al
ue

 d
at

e,
 le

ss
 d

ist
rib

ut
io

ns
 a

ft
er

 n
et

 a
ss

et
 v

al
ue

 d
at

e.
Th

e 
Ta

rg
et

 T
er

m
in

at
io

n 
co

lu
m

n 
is 

th
e 

be
gi

nn
in

g 
of

 li
qu

id
at

io
n 

of
 th

e 
fu

nd
, h

ow
ev

er
, s

om
e 

fu
nd

s m
ay

 b
e 

ex
te

nd
ed

 fo
r a

n 
ad

di
tio

na
l t

w
o 

or
 th

re
e 

ye
ar

s.



 
Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association 

Liquidity Report – July 2019 
 

July 2019 Performance 

 Cash Flow Coverage Ratio 
Benefit Cash Flow Projected by Model $40,750,000  
Liquidity Sub-Portfolio Cash Flow $40,750,000 100% 
Actual Benefits Paid $41,424,856 98% 
Next Month’s Projected Benefit Payment $40,750,000  

 
Monthly Manager Positioning – July 2019 

  Beginning Market 
Value 

Liquidity Program        
Cash Flow 

Market Value 
Change/Other 

Activity 

Ending               
Market Value 

Sit $543,009,330 ($1,250,000) ($2,922,329)  $538,837,001 
DFA $339,795,727  ($13,750,000) $201,219,594 $527,265,321 
Insight $744,843,442  ($25,750,000) $353,723,969  $1,072,817,411 
Liquidity $1,627,648,499 ($40,750,000) $552,021,234 $2,138,919,732 
Cash $36,721,321  ($674,856) $72,669,291 $108,715,756 
Liquidity + Cash $1,664,369,820  ($41,424,856) $624,690,524 $2,247,635,488 

 

Functional Roles 

Manager Portfolio Characteristics Liquidity Contribution 
Sit High quality portfolio of small balance, 

government guaranteed mortgages 
with higher yields. 

Pays out net income on monthly basis.   

DFA High quality, short duration portfolio of 
liquid, low volatility characteristics. 

Pays out a pre-determined monthly amount.  DFA 
sources liquidity from across their portfolio. 

Insight Buy and maintain (limited trading) 
portfolio of high quality, short duration, 
primarily corporates. 

Completion portfolio makes a payment through net 
income and bond maturities that bridges the gap 
between other managers and projected payment. 

Cash STIF account at custodial bank. Buffer in the event of any Liquidity shortfall/excess. 
 
Notes 
The seventh cash flow for 2019 from the liquidity program was completed on July 23rd.  The actuarial model cash flow 
was slightly lower than actual experience, producing $675 thousand less than the actual benefits paid.  
 
  

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date09/11/19Agenda Item#4



 
 

2 
 

Cash Flow Structure 
The chart below shows the sources of cash flow for the next several years of CCCERA’s projected benefit payments.  
This table will change slightly as the model is tweaked and as the portfolios receive new rounds of funding each July 
as part of the Annual Funding Plan. 

 

0

5,000,000

10,000,000

15,000,000

20,000,000

25,000,000

30,000,000

35,000,000

40,000,000

45,000,000

50,000,000

Dollar Investment by Cashflow Period - Current & Future Investments

Sit Contribution DFA Contribution
PV of Principal Maturities PV of Coupon Payments
Growth of Current Insight Investments  Investment Growth (to be sourced)
Future Contributions and Investment Growth



Contra Costa County Employees' Retirement Association
1355 Willow Way, Suite 221
Concord, California 94520-5728
cccera.org

Semi-Annual Disability 
Retirement Report
for the years ended 2015, 2016, 2017, 2018, 
and January 1 to June 30, 2019

Contra Costa County 
Employees' Retirement Association

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date09/11/19Agenda Item#7



2 

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association

Exhibit 1: Disability Retirement Applications Received by Year
As of June 30, 2019

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

2015 2016 2017 2018
Service Connected 

Disability*
BothNon-Service Connected 

Disabilty

2019

1*

6*

2*

3*

3*

Semi-Annual Disability Retirement Report

*Number of service connected disability applications accepted with less than 10 years of service are noted in white.
 



           3

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association

Semi-Annual Disability Retirement Report (Continued)

Exhibit 2: Total Disability Applications Filed with CCCERA (totals listed by employer)
As of June 30, 2019

0

10

20

30

40

50

2015 2016 2017 2018

County Total Superior CourtSRVFPD CCCFPD Housing 
Authority

Rodeo 
Hercules 

FPD
MOFD Central SanCCCERA

In order from top:
MOFD, 1

Housing Authority, 1
CCCFPD, 2

Superior Court, 2
County Total, 19

In order from top:
ECCFPD, 1

Housing Authority, 1
Superior Court, 1

Central San, 2
SRVFPD, 2
CCCFPD, 4

County Total, 19

ECCFPD

2019

In order from top:
Central San, 1

ECCFPD, 1
Superior Court, 2

SRVFPD, 4
CCCFPD, 5

County Total, 14

In order from top:
Central San, 1

MOFD, 5
CCCFPD, 5
SRVFPD, 7

County Total, 12
In order from top:

Central San, 1
MOFD, 1

CCCFPD, 7
Superior Court, 1

SRVFPD, 2
County Total, 9

Exhibit 3: Total Disability Applications Filed with CCCERA (by County Department)
As of June 30, 2019

0

5

10

15

20

25

30

2015 2016 2017 2019 

Health 
Services

SheriffEHSD Community 
Services

DCSSProbation HR Animal 
Services

Public 
Works

General 
Services

Assessor

35

Conservation & 
Development

2018

In order from top:
Animal Services, 1
Health Services, 1

Probation, 3
EHSD, 3
Sheriff, 4

In order from top:
Assessor, 1

Animal Services, 1
Probation, 2

Health Services, 4
EHSD, 5
Sheriff, 6

In order from top:
Conservation & 
Development, 1

Sheriff, 2
Health Services, 3

Probation, 4
EHSD, 4

In order from top:
Health Services, 1

Probation, 3
EHSD, 5

Sheriff, 10

In order from top:
Health Services, 1

Probation, 2
EHSD, 1
Sheriff, 5



4 

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association

Semi-Annual Disability Retirement Report (Continued)

0

10

20

30

40

50

2015 2016 2017 2019 2018
PI CMSK UKNGII SCI PSP

In order from top:
GII, 3
C, 4
PI, 4

MSK, 20

In order from top:
PSP, 1
GII, 3
Pl, 4
C, 5

MSK, 12

In order from top:
SCI, 2
C, 2

PSP, 3
Pl, 4
GII, 5

MSK, 19

In order from top:
SCI, 1
C, 1
PI, 2
GII, 6

MSK, 17

In order from top:
PSP, 1
GII, 1
C, 2
PI, 3

MSK, 15

Exhibit 4: Total Disability Filed by Type (Some applications filed with multiple disability types.) 
As of June 30, 2019

The following acronyms group different illnesses together by type to show trends and are not limited to 
the examples below.

Psychiatric 
Incapacitation 
( PI )

Will include all psychiatric and mental health conditions and injuries.  Examples would be 
PTSD, OCD, depression, schizophrenia, anxiety disorders, mood and emotional disorders.

Musculoskeletal 
( MSK )

Will include all orthopedic injuries and illness. Examples include carpal tunnel syndrome, 
amputation, avascular necrosis, back injury, degenerative disc disease, fibromyalgia, lumbar 
stenosis, neck injury, shoulder injury, and disc herniation.

Cancer ( C ) Will include all permanent incapacitation that was the result of a form of cancer. 
General Internal 
Incapacitation
( GII )

Will include all injuries and illness that are general non-orthopedic issues, not covered by 
the noted above.  Examples include diabetes, any disease or injury to an internal organ, 
rheumatology, pulmonary, gastrointestinal.

Unknown 
( UKN )

Disability application filed for unknown medical reasons. An example would be an employer 
that filed an application with limited medical records due to HIPAA.

Severe Cognitive 
Impairment 
( SCI )

Will include all illness’ and injuries where the incapacitation has caused diminished cognitive 
function. Examples include traumatic brain injury, dementia, dyslexia, dyscalculia, memory 
impairments, diminished concentration and speech.

Public Safety 
Presumptions 
( PSP )

Will include all illness and injuries where the cause is governed under GC Sections 
31720.5, 31720.6, 31720.7, or 31720.9. Presumptions will be listed twice; once under total 
presumption and once under type of disability.



           5

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association

Semi-Annual Disability Retirement Report (Continued)

Exhibit 5: Type of Disability by Injury/Illness Group (Employer Level)
Employer 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Contra Costa County Fire Protection District (CCCFPD)
PI 0 0 0 2 2
MSK 1 4 5 4 4
C 0 0 0 0 1
PSP 0 0 0 0 1

Central Sanitary District
MSK 0 2 0 1 1
GII 0 0 1 0 0
SCI 0 1 0 0 0

East County Fire
PI 0 1 0 0 0
MSK 0 0 1 0 0

Housing Authority of Contra Costa County
MSK 0 1 0 0 0
C 1 0 0 0 0

Moraga/Orinda Fire Protection District
MSK 1 0 0 4 1
C 0 0 0 1 0
GII 0 0 0 0 0

San Ramon Valley Fire Protection District
PI 0 2 0 1 0
MSK 0 1 4 4 2
GII 0 0 0 2 0

Contra Costa County Superior Court
PI 0 0 0 0 1
MSK 1 1 0 0 0
C 1 0 0 0 0
GII 0 0 1 0 0
SCI 0 0 1 0 0

Contra Costa County*
PI 4 1 2 1 0
MSK 9 10 7 7 7
C 3 2 1 3 1
GII 3 5 4 1 1
SCI 0 1 0 0 0

*Detail by Contra Costa County departments on following page.



6 

Contra Costa County Employees’ Retirement Association

Semi-Annual Disability Retirement Report (Concluded)

Exhibit 5: Type of Disability by Injury/Illness Group (Employer Level)
Employer 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019

Contra Costa County
Animal Services

GII 1 0 0 0 0
MSK 0 0 0 1 0

Assessor
GII 1 0 0 0 0

Conservation and Development
C 0 0 1 0 0

Employment & Human Services Department (EHSD)
PI 2 0 0 0 0
MSK 2 1 1 2 1
C 1 1  0 1 0
GII 0 3 3 0 0

Health Services Department
PI 1 0 1 0 0
MSK 1 1 1 1 0
C 1 0 0 0 0
GII 1 1 1 0 1

Probation Department
PI 1 1 1 0 0
MSK 1 1 3 2 2
C 0 0 0 1 0
GII 0 1 0 0 0

Sheriff’s Office
PI 0 0 0 1 0
MSK 5 7 2 1 4
C 1 1 0 1 1
SCI 0 1 0 0 0
GII 0 0 0 1 0

Department 
(County Department Level)



MEMORANDUM 

_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 

1355 Willow Way   Suite 221   Concord   CA    94520    925.521.3960   FAX: 925.521.3969      www.cccera.org 

Date: September 11, 2019    

To: CCCERA Board of Retirement 

From: Gail Strohl, Chief Executive Officer 

Subject: Review of the Procurement of Products and Services Policy 
______________________________________________________________________________ 

Background 
The Procurement of Products and Services Policy indicates that it should be reviewed by the 
Board every three years. It was last reviewed and amended in September 2016. 

Recommendation 
This is informational only. No action is necessary. 

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date09/11/19Agenda Item#8



1 
 

CONTRA COSTA COUNTY EMPLOYEES' RETIREMENT ASSOCIATION 

BOARD OF RETIREMENT 

PROCUREMENT OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES POLICY 
 

Adopted: October 7, 2015 
Amended: 09/29/16 

 
I. PURPOSE  

 
This policy is intended to establish guidelines by which the Contra Costa County Employees’ 
Association (CCCERA) will acquire products and services.  
 
II. OBJECTIVES  

 
A. The objectives of the Procurement of Products and Services Policy are to ensure that:  

 
1. The acquisition of products and services is made in the best interests of 

CCCERA, its members and beneficiaries.  
 

2. The process of selecting providers is diligent, fair and open. 
 

3. Quality products and services are obtained at reasonable cost.  
 
III. APPLICABLE LAW  

 
The CCCERA Board has plenary authority and fiduciary responsibility for the administration 
of the CCCERA system.  (California Constitution, Article XVI, Sec. 17.)  In addition, the 
Board is the governing body of CCCERA, an independent district and the direct employer of 
all its staff, effective January 1, 2015.  (Senate Bill 673, Statutes 2014, Chapter 244; 
Government Code Section 31522.9 and 31468.)  The Board has the authority to delegate 
administrative responsibility to CCCERA personnel to carry out the necessary work of the 
board.  (Government Code Section 31522.9.)   
 
IV. POLICY 

 

A. The general role of the Chief Executive Officer in the selection of service providers 
requiring Board approval is to provide sound research and analysis concerning 
potential service providers, to develop clear and appropriate screening criteria, and to 
recommend candidates for appointment by the Board.  
 

B. In accordance with its fiduciary duty, the general role of the Board in the selection 
process is to determine that the recommendations and accompanying analysis 
provided by the Chief Executive Officer have been prepared with the requisite level of 
skill, diligence and care, and reflect the mission and goals of CCCERA; and to 
exercise its best judgment as to the service providers that will assist the Board in 
carrying out its fiduciary responsibilities.  

 



2 
 

C. Service providers shall be divided into two broad categories: Core service providers 
and non-core service providers. Core service providers include, but are not limited to:  

 
1. The actuary; 
2. The auditor; 
3. The custodian bank;  
4. General and specialty investment consultants; 
5. Investment managers and vehicles;  
6. Fiduciary counsel; 
7. Labor and Employment legal counsel;  
8. Chief labor negotiator;  
9. Employee benefits insurance; and  
10. Other service providers, where the cost of providing the service sought is 

expected to exceed $50,000 in total or where the term of the contract exceeds 
five years.  

 
D. Non-core service providers include, but are not limited to:  

 
1. Ad hoc consultants; and 
2. Information technology services  

 
E. Selection Guidelines 

 
1. All service providers shall be selected in the best interests of CCCERA, its 

members and beneficiaries. 
2. The selection of all service providers shall be subject to a level of due diligence 

that is appropriate to the materiality of the service in question. 
3. Contracts or similar arrangements clearly defining the terms and scope of 

engagement and CCCERA’s expectations shall be established for all service 
providers engaged by CCCERA. 

4. All service providers engaged by CCCERA shall be subject to periodic review 
in accordance with CCCERA's Professional Consultant Evaluation Policy. The 
frequency and depth of such reviews shall be commensurate with the 
materiality of the services provided. 

5. The Chief Executive Officer shall present annually to the Board a multi-year 
time-line depicting all scheduled performance of CCCERA service providers, 
and will report to the Board annually on progress achieved.  

 
F. Core Service Providers  

 
1. The search for a core service provider shall generally be initiated by an action 

of the Board, acting on its own initiative or on the recommendation of the 
Chief Executive Officer.  

2. The Chief Executive Officer, with the assistance of staff, consultants and 
advisors as appropriate, shall develop appropriate selection criteria to ensure 



3 
 

that all candidates are accorded a fair and thorough review. Such criteria may 
include, but are not limited to:  
 
a. Provider experience and track record;  
b. Quality of individuals assigned to work with and provide service to 

CCCERA;  
c. Ability to communicate successfully with the Board and staff;  
d. Client references;  
e. Costs;  
f. Sound business and ethical practices;  
g. Liability coverage; and  
h. CCCERA satisfaction with past service, in the case of incumbent 

providers.  
 

3. The Chief Executive Officer shall provide the Board with periodic reports on 
the status of all search processes.  

4. Except as stated in Par. 9 below, based on the selection criteria, the Chief 
Executive Officer shall select a short list of potential candidates. The Chief 
Executive Officer shall interview the short-listed candidates and may conduct 
due diligence visits in order to identify the most suitable candidate(s). The 
Chief Executive Officer will inform the Board of the interview schedule and 
invite Board members to participate as appropriate.  

5. The Chief Executive Officer shall prepare a report and recommendation for the 
Board which will include:  
 
a. The criteria used to select potential candidates;  
b. A list of candidates that were considered; and  
c. A recommendation as to the candidate(s) who would best fulfill the needs 

identified by CCCERA, and the rationale behind the recommendation.  
 

6. The Board shall consider the analysis and recommendation of the Chief 
Executive Officer. In reviewing the recommendation, the Board shall 
determine that the recommendations and accompanying analysis provided by 
the Chief Executive Officer have been prepared with the requisite level of skill, 
diligence and care, and reflect the mission and goals of the CCCERA.  In the 
event the Board is not satisfied with the analysis or the search process 
undertaken, the Board may direct the Chief Executive Officer to address any 
areas of concern regarding the analysis or the search process. Once such 
additional efforts are complete, the Chief Executive Officer shall resubmit a 
recommendation. 

7. The Board may, at its option, interview the Chief Executive Officer’s 
recommended candidate(s) and any other candidates that were considered.  

8. Following the actions described in Pars. 6 and 7, above, the Board shall 
proceed to vote on the selection of service providers.  The Board shall exercise 
its best judgment as to the service providers that will assist the Board in 
carrying out its fiduciary responsibilities.  



4 
 

9. With regard to the selection of the Board’s Fiduciary Counsel, the selection 
and recommendation process detailed in Pars. 2-7 above shall be conducted 
jointly by one or more Board members appointed by majority vote of the full 
Board for that purpose and the Chief Executive Officer. 

 
G. Guidelines for the Use of Requests for Proposal  

 
1. Requests for proposal (RFP) shall generally be used in searching for service 

providers where the project is material in scope or financial costs.  
2. All CCCERA RFPs shall clearly state that contracts will not necessarily be 

awarded to the lowest bidder.  
3. When an RFP is issued, CCCERA shall ensure that all candidates are provided 

with identical information and requirements.  Candidates shall have the 
opportunity to request additional information during the process and such 
additional information shall be made available publicly on CCCERA’s website 
in advance of to the deadline for responding to the RFP.  

  
H. Quiet Periods  

 
1. The Board and/or the Chief Executive Officer shall declare a "quiet" (black-out) 

period when initiating a Core Service Provider search process.  
2. During quiet periods, Board members shall not communicate with service 

providers known to the Board or staff as likely candidates in the search on matters 
pertaining to CCCERA, except during open and public Board meetings. 
Furthermore, during quiet periods, individual Board members or groups of Board 
members will not meet with such service providers for entertainment or social 
purposes. Exceptions may be made in the case of industry conferences such as 
SACRS, where CCCERA Board members may socialize with specified service 
providers during open social events that are also attended by Trustees or staff of 
other systems, provided CCCERA Board members do not discuss matters 
pertaining to CCCERA business.  

3. For the purpose of quiet periods, prohibited communications include those 
conducted through telephone conversations, letters, e-mails, and social media.  

4. Quiet periods will cease when the subject contract becomes effective or the search 
process is otherwise concluded or suspended by the Board.  

5. CCCERA service providers shall be provided with a copy of these quiet period 
provisions.  

6. All RFPs shall include reference to these quiet period provisions; require that 
prospective service providers comply with its provisions during the selection 
process; and advise prospective service providers that violation of these quiet 
period provisions shall require their disqualification from consideration.  

 
I. Non-Core Service Providers  

 
The Chief Executive Officer may engage non-core service providers for up to a total 
contract value of $50,000 without the prior approval of the Board, provided that the cost 



5 

of the service does not exceed the amount allocated of such service in the CCCERA’s 
annual budget.  The Chief Executive Officer shall notify the Board of the engagement 
of service providers with a cost $10,000 or more at the next following regular meeting 
of the Board. 

J. Contracts for the Procurement of Products 

Contracts for the procurement of products shall be divided into two basis categories: 
Contracts requiring an expenditure of $50,000 or less and those requiring an 
expenditure of more than $50,000.  The Chief Executive Officer has the authority to 
enter into contracts requiring an expenditure of $50,000 or less without Board 
authorization.  Contracts requiring an expenditure in excess of $50,000 require Board 
approval. 

K. Exceptions to Expenditure Limit 

The acquisition of certain operational services is an exception to the $50,000 limit.  
These services include the acquisition of insurance (except employee benefits 
insurance) and physical and data security measures at CCCERA.  In addition, renewals 
of services with long standing non-core service providers are included. 

L. Publication 

These Guidelines and Policy shall be made a part of the Board’s official policies and 
shall be prominently posted to the CCCERA internet website.   

M. Review 

These Guidelines and Policy shall be subject to Board review within one year following 
their initial adoption by the Board, and thereafter, not less than every three years. 



sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date09/11/19Agenda Item#9



sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date09/11/19Agenda Item#11a.













 

sshedd
Text Box
Meeting Date09/11/19Agenda Item#11b.




	09.11.19 Agenda
	Item 3
	Item 4
	Item 7
	Item 8
	Item 9
	Item 11



